MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF THE SENATE COMMITTEE
ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES

SIXTY-FIRST SESSION
NEVADA STATE LEGISLATURE
February 23, 1981

The Senate Committee on Human Resources and Facilities
was called to order by Chairman Joe Neal at 9:05 a.m.,
Monday. February 23, 1981, in Room 323 of the legislative
Building, Carson City, Nevada. Exhibit A is the Meeting
Agenda. Exhibit B is the Attendance Roster.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Senator Joe Neal, Chairman

Senator James N. Kosinski, Vice Chairman
Senator Richard E. Blakemore

Senator Wilbur Paiss

Senator Virgil M. Getto

Senator James H. Bilbray

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Connie S. Richards, Committee Secretary
SENATE BILL NUMBER 165

Mr. Lody Smith, State Porester Firewarden, State of Nevada
explained that Senate Bill No. 165 is basically "clean-up"
legislation pertaining to the firewarden's duties. He

said that the language on lines 5 and 6 is necessary because
the firewarden is often called to emergencies that threaten
human life other than fires i.e. accident washdown, aircraft
and railroad emergencies, and rescues.

Senator Kosinski asked Mr. Smith who would respond to the
emergencies if the firewarden did not.

Mr. Smith said that the state forester firewarden is the
only emergency agency in many areas and thus the only
agency to respond although he does have cooperation agree-
ments with other fire departments.

Mr. Smith presented statistical information regarding the

state forester firewarden calls and answers to calls for
the past several years. This information is Exhibit C.

o

J

8



O @

SENATE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES
FEBRUARY 23, 1981

Senator Getto asked Mr. Smith how many miles are in
his fire protection district.

Mr. Smith said that his fire protection district con-
sists of all of Elko County except for the cities, all
of Storey County, all of Eureka County, portions of
Carson City, Douglas County, and Washoe County, and

,a portion of Mt. Charleston in Clark County.

Senator Kosinski asked what percentage of funds are
contributed by Elko County for the services received
theres.

Mr. Smith said that Elko County pays for a little over
25 percent of the total operating budget in Elko County:
the state and federal governments provide the rest.

Mr. Smith said that Section 4 is being added because

the governor currently has the power to put restrictions
on areas that are flammable during the summer. He said
that he would like to be able to place these restrictions
on certain areas before the fire conditions become ex-
treme. (See Exhibit D). '

Senator Kosinski asked Mr. Smith if he was suggesting re-
moval of the governor's power to place the restrictions
on certain areas.

Mr. Smith said that this was not his intent, adding that the
governor would retain all power for complete closure of an
area, while the forester can only place restrictions on areas.

Mr. Smith explained that Section 5 provides that the state
firewarden be notified when any territory within the state
firewarden's fire protection district is to be excluded from
that district. He added that the reason for this notifica-
tion is so that the firewarden need not respond if the area is
not to be in his district and so that the people whose land
may be involved may be advised as to how and where to get

any fire protection that may be needed.

Senator Getto asked Mr. Smith if he currently has the power
to protect the lives of livestock when in danger by a fire.

Mr. Smith said that he does have the power to release live-




O @

SENATE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES
FEBRUARY 23, 1981

stock from an area if it is threated by fire.

Senator Getto asked if the state forester firewarden has
the power to protect against danger of flood.

Mr. Smith said that flood is considered an emergency that
may threaten human life and therefore falls under the state
forester firewarden's jurisdiction.

The Chairman asked Mr. Smith whether Subsection 2_of Section 7
is to be deleted entirely.

Mr. Smith said that it is to be deleted entirely.

Senator Kosinski suggested that the bill drafter be asked
what his intent was on removing the section.

Senator Kosinski asked Mr. Smith whether the purpose of
the state firewarden's duties should be expanded under
NRS 472.040 if it is to correspond with the changes
proposed under Senate Bill No. 16S5.

Mr. Smith agreed with Senator Kosinski that NRS 472.040
should also be changed. He also noted that on page 5,
line 2, "475.240" should be "475.230" as there is not
statute by the number 475.240.

Mr. Jack Pine, State Budget Office said that currently,
if the state forest division is required to control a
large fire, they often run out of money from their fire
suppression account and must turn to the emergency fund
where, upon the approval of the board of examiners,
$50,000 may be obtained. He said that by moving it into
the statutory contingency fund, it allows for a larger
dollar amount from which to draw.

Senator Kosinski asked Mr. Pine whether he felt that the
language in Section 1 should be limited to the suppression
fund.

Mr. Pine said that he did not feel that that would be nec-
essary.

Senator Kosinski said that if it should not, under the
current language, overtime salaries for the fighting

210




@ @

SENATE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES
FEBRUARY 23, 1981

of fires could be taken from the personnel or equipment
fund.

Mr. Pine said that they wouldn't do that.

Senator Kosinski said that the language as it is worded
does permit that; he asked if it should be changed.

Mr. Pine said that slaraies are paid out of the regular
salary account, and could not be paid out of the suppression
account only.

Senator Kosinski suggested that the language be worded
to express exactly what is intended by the forest division.

Mr. Dan Fitzpatrick, Representative, Clark County agreed that
the langquage in Section 1 of the bill is too broad. He said
that the money should be specifically set for each expenditure.

The Chairman said that the division should. be able to approp-
riate funds in any way that is seen fit to cover expenses
incurred through fighting fires and saving lives.

Mr. Ssmith said that NRS 473.050 outlines funding programs,
explaining how budgeting must be made and where monies must
come from.

Mr. Fitzpatrick said that the language in Section 4 is too
broad and should be specifically related to public danger
as it relates to fire.

Mr. Pitzpatrick said that the language under Section 5,
Subsection 2 is too ambiguous. He wondered if the
"majority of the owners" refers to the majority of the
land owners, majority of the valuation of the land, or
actual numbers.

The Chairman asked Mr. Smith, Mr. Fitzpatrick and Senator
Bilbray to discuss the questions that arose during the
meeting, to determine the proper language that should

be used in the bill to address those questions.

Senator Kosinski asked that the committee also consider
the amendment to 472.040 to broaden the language scope

r— £ 4
LU.A-.LL




O O

SENATE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES
FEBRUARY 23, 1981

of the duties of the state forester firewarden to include
the emergency responses.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at
10:20 a.m.

Raquctfully Submitted:

ttee Secretary

§$Eaior OeNeal, Chairman

DATE;’:ES“"C;k" %3/ ]




O ' davised 2/18/81

SENATE AGENDA

COMMITTEE MEETINGS EXHIBIT A
Ccrmittee on Buman Resources and Facilities , Room 323 .
Day Mondav ', Date February 23 , Time 9:00 a.m.

S. B. No. 165--Grants state forester firewarden authority
to prohibit, restrict or limit certain activities in fire
orotection district. .

-
X

.




ATTENDANCE ROSTER FO

comd DTEE MEETINGS

SENATE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES AND FACILITIES

O DATE:_ February 23, 1981

EXHIBIT B

T T i, R T P R TR e R

NAME ORGANIZATION & ADDRESS TELEPHONE

ooy smize | sl i or oGsg 85 435D
ek S e Bosser Diissisy 2 SIS
EQ.% IC oo« T Nr. Doy off Rere <'7FL% S0« H3T g
CBeewnrl SEac|lCarson 0. Ay For Oeof . |g82-063

514



O

D/pm /f?é’ /, 779

' Year]
] ;
1978 | ACRES 1979 . acres | ! 1978 1979
UL yiar ! YEAR YEAR _ YEAR 1 YEAR YEAR
H & 7
£a] vrLoLaxD | ML-LT1DLANY
5 Ligmmeixe | 23 107.83 25 505.25 STRIKTURAL 39 62
i _CAMPFIRE | 13 3.36 a | 2.25 venicLE 48 70
SMOX1NG 7 1067.95 RAILKOAD 3 5
!L DERRIS 19 122.05 2 90.60 AIRCRAFT 3 0
b
i JRCENDLARY 12 . 2.0 6 5531.00 OTHER 20 14
©) ervrremsy vse | 6 1001.1 v 102.60 YoTAL 113 151
I
{ RAILRCAY 33 25.65 39 1016.90 I
| CMILDREN ! 10 2 19 11.55 INCIDENTS 562 538
STRUCTURAL 1 1 1.50 FIRST A1D 168 138
) .
: MISCELLANECYS k) | 17.38 63 10.55 ASSISTS 353 219
TOT/.L 148 1281.56 219 0522.35
SI2E A 106 . 148" 13.80 YOTAL ACTIONS 1176 1147
[ S1zE B n $5.25 61 116.55
]
! sS1IZEC 6 223.0 0 312.00 DAMACES
! SIZE D 1 170.00 ROR-LTLDLARD 739,614 940, 301
: $12F E 2 1000 3 1350.00 PAMACES
O S1ZE F : 1 1060.00 VILMANS 215,062 2959,678
s12F C . i 1 $500.00
: .
TOTAY ] | 148 | 1281.%6 219 8522.35 TOTAL 899,979
H i - : . :
i
T i
A
e
?
[d5 : f
—t e % = S
9F | i i
1
O ()
- - O o B b




. " Yearly ml
T ' | l
[ 1979 ACRES 1980 | Ackes ACRES i 1979 1980
) YEAR YEAR vear | wowm YEAR - YEAR YEAR
: VILDLAYD ' NON-UILMAKD J
8l Lionrxaxe 5 595.25 ) 815.55 STHUCTURAL 62 sg
E CAMPFIRE 21 24.25 2 201.60 veniciLe 0 3
WL O 7 1067.95 18 289.15 RAILROAD s ]
i DEBRIS 2 90.60 M 94.20 AIRCRAFT [ 1
:_ INCENDIARY 6 < $531.00 15 1077.90 oTHER 14 10
O:__E("’l"?m-\‘f usr 17 162.80 32 3576.93 TOTAL 151 131
1 RAILROAY 3 1016.90 23 89.05
j_CMILOREX 19 11.55 26 120.78 INCIDENTS 550, 575.
STRUCTURAL 1 1.50 0 0 FIRST AID 138 ' 240
P mrsceriasovs : 63 10.58 15 438 ASS1STS 219 ‘ 258
ToTAL | 219 9522.35 209 6269.48
T OSIZE A 144 ‘| 13.80 105 9.43 TOTAL ACTIONS 147 1170
I s1ze » 61 116.53 75 100.33
' oseee c 8 312.00 19 666.70 MMACES
_sizF p 1o 170.00 s 91.00 NKON-RTLDIAND 940, 301 127,330
, SIZE % ‘ ) 1350.00 s 25$9.00 PARACES
) sney | 1 1060.00 1 2053.00 VILMARD 2959,678 h316,190
$12F © . 1 ' $500. 00 ' P i o |
N . ; j 29 0522.35 209 CEXTN [ - wm,l 243,520
| ' |
| 1
£a 1 S — i e
F N ! | i

O
0
O



@ @

{ {

MB. A75=R/2

STATE OF NEVADA
Exscutive Chamber
Carsen City, Nevada

A PROCLAMATION BY THE GOVERNOR:

VHEREAS, cthers cow exiscs a sericus firs hszazd on forsst sad watershed areas
in the Sierra Bevada foothills snd che Lake Tahoe 3asin, including portions of Washoe
and Douglas Counties and Carsca City, mors particulary described as that ares which
lies betwasn the California Stace Line on the West end U.S. Highway 393 and che
Stace Routs 68 on the East and all of Scorey Councy.

VHEREAS, chs Scate Forestsr Firssarden has exprassed concera and requasted

U0W, THEREFORE, I Bobert List, by che power vested in om as Governmor of ths
amdm«wmmmummmmmw
these lands:

1.0mmmuquﬁmhmmmum
& spark asrrestor in sceordancs wich State law.

<23 Opsrating vehiclas off of exiscing bard surface, graval or dire
ronds in wildland eress.

3. Operating vebicles or egquipmamt traveling ¢n of using wildlsnd
aress vithout having at laast e axs, shoval and one gallom of
m.

4. Smoking in other than vehicles, established campgrounds, clssred
areas or sreas of habitacion.

3. Secting of open fires {n other than established campgrounds or
picnic areas.

6. Travel by other then suthorized persounal ca roads or lands vhich
have bean posted as closed by & respensibla firs sgency.

PROVIDED, EOWEVER, chat thess prohidicions shall sot apply to designated
camps or beachas, plsces of improved habitacion sad vhils tZaveling on oumbered
Scata end Fedarnl highwmys.

This order is effective Juyd 1980, and will resain in effect until
rescinded.

By the Governor

Secrutary of Scace

oi7





